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8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

9 FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
10
11 | DONALD T. COLLIER, No. 2:13-cv-0852 LKK AC PS
12 Plaintiff,
13 V. ORDER
14 | VALLEJO POLICE DEP'T, et al.,
15 Defendants.
16
17 On September 4, 2013, the court held a hgash defendants’ motion to dismiss. Furgh
18 | Z. Faruqui appeared for the moving defendants, Vallejo Police Department and City of Vallejo
19 | (“City”). Plaintiff did not make an appearanc®n review of the motiorthe documents filed in
20 | support and opposition, upon hearing the argummkeocdunsel, and good cause appearing
21 | therefor, THE COURT FINDS AS FOLLOWS:
22 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
23 | A. RacialDiscrimination& Basis for Other Claims
24 A recurring figure in plaintiff's complains Fran Wilson, a bi-polar Caucasian woman
25 | whose relation to plaintiff is unspecified. Onwamspecified date and am unspecified court,
26 | plaintiff initiated a personal injury lawsuit doehalf of Wilson against the City. Compl. 2.
27 | Plaintiff contends that the case settled, aftkich City officials subjected plaintiff to
28 | discrimination. _lId.
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B. Entrapment

Following the settlement with Wilson, plaintdfleges that City officials coerced her to
participate in a scheme of entrapment by forcingtbi@lant a controlledubstance in plaintiff's
vehicle. Compl. 2. The entrapment was part of an attempt to gain ownership of plaintiff's
vehicle. _Id. 3. As a result thhe entrapment, the vehicle was impounded and later lien-sold

member of the Sheriff's Department. Id. Plaintiaims that the Sheriff's Department held on

the vehicle even after the entrapment-relatedgehaf possession againsaiitiff was dismissed,

Id. In support of his allegatn that the City was conspiringtiv Wilson to entrap plaintiff,
plaintiff alleges that Wilson knew when plaintifas to be released from jail on bond, a fact
plaintiff himself did notknow. Id. Plaintiff contends th&Vilson could have only gotten this
information from defendants. Id.
C. Murder

After the alleged entrapment, plaintiff spakeWilson, who informed plaintiff of her
involvement and who said that the Vallejo Policgo®@ment officials forcetier to participate in
the scheme. Compl. 2. Shortly after this conversation, Wilson was admitted to Sutter-Sol
Hospital for a hematoma to her leg. 1d. Althowaghiend of Wilson’s visited her at the hospitg

and claimed that she appeared well during thig Wélson died inexplicably the next day. Id.

Plaintiff suggests that Wilson’s cawspirators killed her as a measfobstructing justice. Id. 3.

D. Withholding of Social Security Payments

Plaintiff further contends that the SntaCounty Sheriff's Department and a Vallejo

Social Security official extorteglaintiff's Social Security benefits. Compl. 4. Plaintiff alleges

that he was wrongfully assessed overpaymeftoaial Security berfigs, which led to a
withholding of his payments. |
for the immediate payment to plaintiff of all berepreviously withheld, plaintiff asserts that t
Solano County Sheriff's Department and Vallejo 8b8ecurity official déed the judge’s order
and continued to withhold payments. Id.

E. Wrongful Taking into Custody

Plaintiff next alleges that can unspecified date, he wasongfully taken into custody by
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the Solano County Sheriff's Department while ridimg bicycle. Compl., ECF No. 1 at 7. Whjle

the Sheriff's Department claintbat plaintiff was riling on the wrong side olhe road, plaintiff
argues that he was ag nothing wrong._1d.

F. Miscellaneouf£laims

Lastly, plaintiff suggests théilis money was taken by the \&gb Transit Bus after he w3
denied service; that his water svshut off after he paid his watgervice bill; ad that he was
forced to pay the Sheriff's Department $40 multijaees to show that he did not have a warrg

Plaintiff seeks $15,500,000.00 in damages.

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND
A. Prior Action

On April 2, 2012, plaintiff filed a complaint ithe Northern Districof California, Case
No. 3:12-cv-01635-EDL. In that case, plainstfed various Vallejo city agencies on claims
similar to those alleged here: disaination by City of Vallejo agenes against plaintiff, as well
as alleged improper conduct by the CITY relatmglaintiff's car anchis friend. On May 186,
2012, plaintiff filed an amendezbmplaint in that case. GDctober 1, 2012, the case was
dismissed for failure to prosecute.

B. ThelnstantAction

Plaintiff initiated this acbn on February 20, 2013 in the Nwetn District of California
asserting the following claims: violation of divights pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983; conspirac
to commit murder; entrapment; unltwvsearch and seizure; racgbofiling; and discrimination.
Plaintiff names as defendants the City of Vallghe Vallejo Police Department, Sutter Hospit
the Vallejo Social Security Office, theoGnty Clerk’s Office, and the Solano Sheriff's
Department.

On March 14, 2013, the City and the Vall&olice Department filed a motion to dismis
for failure to state a claim and for improper ven&aintiff filed an oppsition in the Northern
District of California on April3, 2013. On April 30, 2013, the motiaras granted in part as to
improper venue, and the case wasi$ferred to this court.

On June 10, 2013, the City and the Vallejtid@oDepartment re-filed their motion to
3
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dismiss for failure to state a claim. Becauserpiff did not file an opposition in this court
despite an order to do so, see ECF No. 31, andibede failed to appear at the September 4
2013 hearing on defendants’ motion to dismiss, the undersigned issued findings and
recommendations recommending that this matteti$rmissed for lack of prosecution. ECF N¢
34. These recommendations were not adogtedthe matter was referred back to the
undersigned. Following referral, the court has mered plaintiff’s opposition to the first motic
to dismiss filed in the Northern Drigtt of California. See ECF No. 21.
LEGAL STANDARDS
The purpose of a motion to dismiss pursuariederal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6

is to test the legal sufficiency of the comptailN. Star Int’l v. Aiz. Corp. Comm’n, 720 F.2d

578, 581 (9th Cir. 1983). “Dismissal can be basetherack of a cognizable legal theory or tf

absence of sufficient facts alleged under a cognidefgkd theory.” Baligeri v. Pacifica Police

Dep't, 901 F.2d 696, 699 (9th Cir. 1990). A pldins required to allege “enough facts to stat
claim to relief that is plausible on its fateBell Atl. Corp. v. Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 555

(2007). Thus, a defendant’s Rule 12(b)(6) motioalleinges the court’s ability to grant any rel
on the plaintiff's claims, even if éhplaintiff's allegations are true.

In determining whether a complaint stadéedaim on which relief may be granted, the
court accepts as true the allegations in the ¢@mipand construes the allegations in the light

most favorable to the plaintiff. Hishan King & Spalding, 467 U.$69, 73 (1984); Love v.

United States, 915 F.2d 1242, 1245 (9th Cir. 1989).
DISCUSSION
The moving defendants argue tp#intiff has failed to allege facts sufficient to state &
claim against them for racial discriminationvarongful death. They further contend that the
allegation of entrapment is naih actionable civil claim.

1. RacialDiscrimination

Defendants argue first that piéiif has failed to allege facts sufficient to state a claim |

discrimination.

The Equal Protection Clauses‘@ssentially a direction that all persons similarly situate
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should be treated alike.” City of Cleburiex. v. Cleburne Livig Center, 473 U.S. 432, 439

(1985). To state a cognizable claim under theaE&rotection Clause, plaintiff “must plead
intentional unlawful discrimination or allege facts that are at least susceptible of an inferen

discriminatory intent.”_Byrd v. Maricop@ounty Sheriff's Dep’t, 565 F.3d 1205, 1212 (9th Ci

2009) (quoting Monteiro v. Tempe Union Hi§chool District, 158 F.3d 1022, 1026 (9th Cir.

1998)). Plaintiff alleges thateéhdefendants had a discriminatory intent when they, inter alia,
seized his vehicle and took him into custody whilevas riding his bicycle. But plaintiff has n
alleged specific facts that suppan inference of discriminatoigtent. Additionally, plaintiff
fails to identify on what groundse was treated differently thathers similarly situated.
Furthermore, municipalities can only be swedler 42 U.S.C. § 1983 if there is a show
that an official policy or custom caused tlumstitutional violation. Sice plaintiff failed to
include allegations of a policy, stom, or practice, the claims against the City and the Vallej
Police Department amount to arvocation of respondeat sup liability. However, a
municipality “cannot be held liabkolely because it employs a tortfeasor — or, in other words
municipality cannot be held liable under [42 LS8 1983] under a respondeat superior theot

Monell v. Department of Soc. Servs., 436 WBS8, 691 (1978); Henry v. County of Shasta, 13

F.3d 512, 524 (9th Cir. 1996). Thereforeedt claims are subject to dismissal.

2. Entrapment

Plaintiff's entrapment claim also fails. Entraent is a legal term of art for a particular
defense to a criminal charge. See 1 Witkin, Cam. Law, Ch. 3: Defenses, § 100 (4th ed.
2012); Hudson v. Shinseki, 2011 WL 3861689, at * 7 (N.D. Cal. Aug. 31, 2011) (“[Plaintiff’

claim for entrapment is not an actionable civdicl but rather a potentidefense to a criminal

charge, and thus has no application hereSge generally United States v. Spentz, 653 F.3d ¢

818 (9th Cir. 2011) (*entrapment defense has two elements:” (1) the defendant was induct
commit the crime by a government agent, and (2y& not otherwise predisposed to commit
crime”). This claim therefore must be dismissed with prejudice.

3. WrongfulDeath

Lastly, defendants contend thaaioltiff has failed to allege &s sufficient to state a clail
5
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of wrongful death for thelleged death of Wilson.
Separate from a survival action, a famitgmber may bring a state law wrongful death
claim to recover damages based on their ownrigguesulting from a decedent’s death. Cal.

Code Civ. Proc. § 377.60; see Ruiz v. PodolskyCal. 4th 838, 858 (2010). Standing to sue

wrongful death is governed by Calrhia Code of Civil Procedar§ 377.60, and the category of

persons eligible to bring wrongjfdeath actions is strictigonstrued. Cal. Code Civ. Pro.

8§ 377.60;_Steed v. Imperial Airlines, 12 Cadl 115, 119-20 (1974). A pl#iff who brings a

wrongful death suit as an heir must estéioliee absence of issue by the decedent and the
entitlement or propriety of the heir to seekaeery under § 377.60, i.e. that the heir actually K

standing under 8 377.60. See Nelson v. Gouoht.os Angeles, 113 Cal. App. 4th 783, 789

(2004) (“We agree with the County that eowgful death plaintiff must plead and prove

standing”). In relevat part, 8 377.60 states:

A cause of action for the deatti a person caused by the wrongful
act or neglect of another may bsserted by any of the following
persons or by the decedent's personal representative on their behalf:

(@) The decedent's surviving spouse, domestic partner,
children, and issue of deceased children, or, if there is no
surviving issue of the decedent the persons including the surviving
spouse or domestic  partner, who would be entitled to the
property of the decedent by intestate succession.

(b) Whether or not qualifiednder subdivision (a), if they

were dependent on the decedent, the putative spouse, children of
the putative  spouse, stefldhen, or parents . . ..

Section 377.60(a) affords standing to those@erentitled to the decedent’s property through
intestate succession, but only itk is no surviving issue of the decedent. See Cal. Prob. G

6402(b);_Chavez v. Carpenter, 91 Cal. App. 4th 1433, 1445 (2001). If the decedent has c

“his parents would not be his heirs at all . nd éherefore not entitled toaintain this [wrongful

death] action at all.” Chave@]1 Cal. App. 4th at 1440 (intednguotation marks and citations
omitted).

Here, the complaint fails to specify plaintiff's relationstopVilson, let alone meet the
requirements of California law regarding thenfiof a wrongful death action. Accordingly, th

claim must also be dismissed.
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For the foregoing reasons, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that:

1. Defendants’ June 10, 2013 amended motiotigmiss (ECF No. 29) is granted;

2. The complaint is dismissed; and

3. Plaintiff is granted thirty dayBom the date of service ttiis order to file an amende
complaint that complies with the requiremeotshe Federal Rulesf Civil Procedure
the Local Rules of Practice, and this ardbe amended complaint must bear the
docket number assigned this case and imeisabeled “Amended Complaint”; plaint
must file an original antvo copies of the amended complaint; failure to file an

amended complaint in accordance with tinider will result in a recommendation th
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this action be dismissed.

DATED: February 10, 2014

-

ALLISON CLAIRE

UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE




